Development Control Committee



Minutes of a meeting of the Development Control Committee held on Wednesday 7 March 2018 at 6.00 pm at the Council Chamber, District Offices, College Heath Road, Mildenhall IP28 7EY

Present: Councillors

Chairman Rona Burt **Vice Chairman** Chris Barker

David Bowman
Ruth Bowman J.P.
Brian Harvey
Louis Busuttil
Simon Cole
Roger Dicker

Stephen Edwards
Brian Harvey
Louise Marston
David Palmer
Peter Ridgwell

283. Remembrance

Prior to commencing the business on the agenda the Chairman asked all present to stand in order to observe a minute's silence in remembrance of former Forest Heath District Councillor John McGhee who had recently passed away.

284. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Andrew Appleby and Carol Lynch.

285. Substitutes

There were no substitutes present at the meeting.

286. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 January 2018 were unanimously received as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman.

287. Planning Application DC/18/0129/FUL - Belle Vue, Newmarket Road, Barton Mills (Report No: DEV/FH/18/003)

Planning Application - (i) Front Porch, (ii) 1no. Workshop and carport and (iii) Private access road

This application was referred to the Development Control Committee as the applicant was related to the Leader of the Council.

Officers were recommending that the application be approved, subject to conditions, as set out in Paragraph 20 of Report No DEV/FH/18/003.

The Senior Planning Officer advised that since publication of the agenda both Barton Mills Parish Council and the Highways Authority had confirmed that they had no objections to the application.

Councillor Brian Harvey spoke as Ward Member (Manor) and stated that the Parish Council considered the application to be in keeping with the surrounding area. Accordingly, he moved that the application be approved as per the Officer recommendation and this was duly seconded by Councillor Louis Busuttil.

Upon being put to the vote, and with the vote being unanimous, it was resolved that

Decision

Planning permission be **GRANTED** subject to the following conditions:

- 1. 01A Development to commence within 3 years
- 2. 14FP Development to be in accordance with approved plans

288. Planning Application DC/17/1176/FUL - Straw Barn Farm, Dunstall Green, Ousden (Report No: DEV/FH/18/004)

Planning Application – 1no dwelling

This application was referred to the Development Control Committee following consideration by the Delegation Panel; the Panel considered the application in light of the Officer recommendation being in conflict with the views of the Parish Council.

A Member site visit was held prior to the meeting. Officers were recommending that the application be refused for the reason set out in Paragraph 32 of Report No DEV/FH/18/004.

The Senior Planning Officer advised the Committee that the applicant had submitted information to prove a need for an occupant to live on the site as well as financial details to show the business was viable. This information had been reviewed by Kernon Countryside Consultants (KCC) who had been appointed by the Local Planning Authority.

KCC's assessment of the financial details indicated that the business was financially stable, however, they also considered that the level of income was sufficient to maintain the applicant's current residence or another nearby residence.

Hence, whilst Part C of Policy DM26 was met in terms of the business' financial viability, the proposal did not fully meet the tests of DM26 as KCC

considered that there were alternative residential properties in the locality available to the applicant.

Speaker: Mr Chris Nunn (applicant) spoke in support of the application

Councillor Roger Dicker spoke as Ward Member (South) and explained that whilst he had sympathy for the applicant in respect of this application he felt there was a strong reason to support the Council's own policy as outlined by the Case Officer.

Accordingly he moved that the application be refused as per the Officer recommendation. This was duly seconded by Councillor David Bowman.

Councillors Simon Cole and Brian Harvey asked specific questions with regard to the application which were responded to in detail by the Service Manager (Planning – Development).

In relation to Member comments with regard to the need for provision for agricultural workers/industry within the Council's housing policy, the Service Manager suggested that Members could raise this directly with the relevant Portfolio Holder.

Upon putting the motion to the vote, and with 8 voting for, 3 against and with 1 abstention, it was resolved that

Decision

Planning permission be **REFUSED** for the following reason:

1. Policy DM26 requires that proposals for essential workers dwellings, in this instance an agricultural worker, provide evidence that there is a functional need for a full time permanent worker on the site, that there is a financially viable business, and that there is no other alternative dwellings available elsewhere in the locality. The application has failed to demonstrate that there is a functional need sufficient for the site to be occupied by a full time permanent worker, and while it is accepted that the business is financially viable, there is accommodation in the surrounding area that would appear to be available, at a distance reasonably commensurate with the existing arrangement, and within a suitable price range. The proposal therefore fails to accord with policies DM5, DM26 and paragraph 55 of the NPPF in respect of the requirement to demonstrate sufficient need for the dwelling.

The meeting concluded at 6.27pm

Signed by:

Chairman